
MINUTES∗ 
 

Senate Research Committee 
December 14, 1990 

 
 
Present:  John Sullivan (Chair), John Basgen, Signe Betsinger, Mark Brenner, Sue Donaldson, 

Tony Faras, N. L. Gault, Robert Herman, Nick LaFontaine, Tony Potami, Ken Reid, 
Duane Rostad, Winifred Schumi, Albert Yonas, Jim Ysseldyke 

 
 
1.   Research Center Matching 
 
 Copies of the document "Principles Guiding the Commitment of Resources to match Funds Being 
Requested from Sponsoring Agencies for large Multi-College (Center) Grants" were distributed.  Dean 
Brenner introduced the document by saying that there is a need to establish a tradition concerning 
matches for research centers.  Demand for matches has increased steadily, and has been addressed ad hoc, 
with much depending on the personalities and power of individual deans.  NIH does not require matching 
dollars, he said, but NSF does so increasingly.  Smaller grantors' policies vary, with many foundations 
expecting matches.  The University's position is that matches should reflect scholarly merit and that the 
institution should remain competitive and not allow itself to be outbid.  What is needed is a systematic 
policy which will avoid becoming boxed in by commitments.  For major programs matches may be 
necessary, but the unit which will ultimately benefit should assume the responsibility. 
 
 Item #2 of the document, stating that matching funds expected to extend beyond the initial life of 
the requested grant should be funded on 0100 funds by the end of the grant period, will probably be 
changed, Brenner said.  Matches that go into soft dollars, e.g., for supplies, should not go into hard funds 
involving student tuition. 
 
 In answer to a question of whether there is sometimes collusion with foundations to get more 
money, Tony Potami replied that this occasionally happens, but usually on larger projects.  Another 
situation which puts pressure on the University arises when money has already been invested and will be 
lost if a match is not made.  In some cases, Brenner added that the EPA project negotiation is possible 
with faculty time included as part of the match.  This happened with the EPA program where faculty time 
was counted as 20% of the match and the deans added the remaining cash. 
 
 Professor Sullivan asked if the changes in the document would go through the Senate Research 
Committee.  Brenner replied that item #2 is part of the regular University budget and can be changed 
from "0100 funds" to "regular University budget funds" as a matter of clarification.  Any comments or 
suggestions on other changes should be given to him.  He added in response to a comment by Tony 
Potami that the definition of 0100 is not always clear, since it pays people for other things besides 
teaching; Brenner said that "regular University budget" includes 0100 funds, but is broader. 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
∗ These minutes reflect discussion and debate at a meeting of a committee of the University of Minnesota 

Senate or Twin Cities Campus Assembly; none of the comments, conclusions, or actions reported in these minutes 
represent the views of, nor are they binding on, the Senate or Assembly, the Administration, or the Board of 
Regents. 



Senate Research Committee  2 
December 14, 1990 
 
 
2.   Off-Campus Research Space Rental 
 
 The draft "Policy for Renting Space Off Campus for Grants Activities" was distributed.  Dean 
Brenner said that its purpose is to clarify the decision-making process by which space needs are 
determined for proposals developed by investigators.  The Minnesota Facilities Model provides a basic 
guide and allows the factoring in of various kinds of activities (unlike earlier models which were focused 
in classroom teaching space).  It distinguishes the activities of students, faculty, and other space users.  If 
a program is properly defined the model can produce a good estimate of space needs.  It is a more rational 
and responsible means of estimating space and avoids having programs simply acquire space on the basis 
of how much money they have.  Faculty members should have a good idea of the activities planned and 
they can go the a dean or unit head to see if space is available on campus.  Most faculty would prefer to 
house programs on campus, Brenner added, if only for the sake of convenience.  If not enough space is 
available or if the space is inadequate, the dean can certify the need for off-campus space, and the matter 
then goes to the Space Advisory Committee (currently chaired by Vice President Kvavik).  Space 
acquisition, Brenner said is an area in which it is appropriate for a Senate committee to look at the policy, 
but not undertake the administrative work.  The Space Advisory Committee is the appropriate 
administrative group to do this. 
 
 Item #3 will probably be further refined, Dean Brenner said.  It states that total funds for rent 
must not exceed the difference between on-campus and off-campus ICR funds generated during the life of 
the grant.  Rent will be direct charged to the grant.  This is already the policy of the Real Estate Office, 
Brenner said.  The objective is based on the premise that grants are credited to the dean concerned. 
 
 Professor Yonas pointed out problems that arise in joint projects with school districts.  Tony 
Potami added that school districts don't have a rate that's approved by governmental grantors.  Hospitals 
have to develop overhead rates and submit proposals.  If the overhead is legitimate, he said it should be 
included.  So many exceptions occur with the three thousand grants his office deals with, he said that they 
need the ability to go into varied situations.  Writing one single policy to fit all situations would be nearly 
impossible.  
 
 Professor Reid added that some deans feel that the state policies penalize those working on state 
funded projects and that the state should be obligated to recognize overhead at the University.  Potami 
said that on individual contracts they used to get overhead.  The amount was not very much for the time 
spent, however, so they eliminated figuring it and standardized the agreements.  The state is supposed to 
pass through any overhead it gets.  In current agreements, the state pays part of building cost and the 
University part of the bonding.  There is now talk about taxing because of the general financial squeeze, 
but this could ultimately eliminate industry research.  It would be politically difficult to collect.  Because 
of the amount of red tape involved, he said, more people in his office are working on state grants than on 
NSF and NIH grants combined.  Professor Sullivan said that he has tried to get funding from foundations 
for school based projects, and most foundations won't pay for direct cost of space. 
 
 Reid suggested that in footnote #2, "Funds from the Research Support Fund will only be 
authorized for new grants that generate the full on-campus ICR," the words "In general" be inserted 
before the sentence. 
 
 Potami suggested that no definition of "full overhead" should be included in the document, saying 
that there needs to be consideration of what full overhead really is.  Brenner responded that staff and the 



Senate Research Committee  3 
December 14, 1990 
 
 
Research Executive Council have given much thought to this.  The USDA grants have a cap at 14%.  NIH 
looks at cost effectiveness in making awards.  Potami said that the results of the Stanford University audit 
will give the government pause concerning overhead and will probably result in limits being imposed.  
The rank of different universities differs because of different accounting practices, he said, and rank is not 
the only factor to consider.  In the Big 10, Michigan and Northwestern always rank higher.  Many items 
like secretarial work are direct costed; if they were taken off 0100 the rate would change.  Robert Herman 
asked if a flat rate would not be more efficient, and Potami agreed, saying he has argued for it.  Potami 
went on to say that it is no longer allowable to put fringes into indirect costs.  A basic package of benefits 
should be allowed, but it needs to be rather narrowly defined.  Private universities have been leaders in 
overhead studies, he added. 
 
 Sue Donaldson observed that agencies often won't pay the whole indirect cost, and that such 
grants are usually small but they are important as a starting place for junior faculty.  Potami responded 
that it is the policy to accept agency policies on this. 
 
 In reference to the statement in #2 that the Real Estate Coordinator has sole responsibility to sign 
the lease agreement, Brenner said that once leased the space becomes the University's space, making the 
REC the appropriate office to deal with.  Principle investigators say what they need, but should not handle 
the rental negotiations.  Committee members suggested that a joint decision between the REC, the dean 
and the PI might be desirable.  Others said the PI should have to agree that the space is appropriate.  John 
Basgen asked if the PI can opt to stay on campus with space that is less appropriate according to the 
Minnesota Facilities Model.  Potami said that the Model is simply a starting point.  Tony Faras said that 
according to this draft it seems a dean could force a PI to go off campus.  Potami replied that this 
document deals only with new projects for which space is not available on campus.  Brenner added that it 
is hoped that space decisions will be consensual and negotiations win/win. 
 
 Potami observed that the policy formalizes and clarifies what is happening already.  He added in 
regard to the question of indirect cost recovery that it is necessary to remember how the money got here.  
It would not be logical to give back to the state all overhead, but the state can appropriately ask what the 
University is going to do with it. 
 
 In answer to a question about how many of the 3000 grants going through Potami's office use 
off-campus space, the reply was "not many."  Brenner added that there is much off-campus rental that is 
not under grants.  The issues involved in the Research Support Fund and off-campus rental come together. 
 
 There was discussion about making units responsible for the projects they agree to and about 
considering their funding capabilities and putting corresponding caps on the amount for RSF funding per 
activity.  Brenner said that his staff has thought about this and it needs to be discussed.  They try to 
monitor and plan so that they don't assume new responsibilities that skew the current ones.  Reid noted 
that because the current trend is toward large grants, amounts may need to be increased.  Potami observed 
that the terms more than the size of the grant is the issue; if large grants pay full overhead and rent there is 
no loss to the institution.  Sullivan suggested that guidelines might be preferable to an actual cap. 
 
 Dean Brenner concluded by saying he hopes to have a new version of the policy before the next 
SRC meeting. 
 
 



Senate Research Committee  4 
December 14, 1990 
 
 
3.   Disclosure Policy 
 
 The document "Disclosure of Financial Arrangements with Industry" was distributed.  Dean 
Brenner said that the University is ahead of many institutions in the development of a policy on 
disclosure.  The present policy pertains to disclosure of financial arrangement with industry.  The NIH is 
now looking at disclosure of potential personal gain.  There is considerable question of whether financial 
gain should be the sole point of disclosure or whether potential conflicts in other areas should be included.  
Brenner reported that to keep reputations clean publications should also be disclosed if relevant to the 
subject. 
 
 Tony Potami said that he put together the committee that drafted the current document.  That 
committee discussed at length what constitutes "substantial" and the degree of detail required in reporting 
arrangements.  It would be both simpler and cleaner to simply say that any interest should be reported, he 
said.  Obviously there is a difference in owning 10% of a company's stock and owning one share, but 
some other types of involvement are less clear.  There is also much to be said for disclosing arrangements 
with all programs - not just industry. 
 
 Brenner said he would like to ask this committee to look over the document and think about how 
it should be revised and by whom - a subcommittee of SRC, the Research Executive Council, or another 
body.  Sullivan suggested that a group be formed including someone from the original committee, 
someone from this committee and someone from the REC. 
 
 Asked why change is needed, Brenner said that an expanded, University-wide statement is 
needed.  Committee members suggested that it should also go beyond research involvement. 
 
 Brenner said that there is no tight deadline and the matter can be discussed in January. 
 
4.   Update on Vice President for Research Status 
 
 Vice President Kvavik reported that the draft of job description was completed this morning and 
is being circulated now.  He will forward copies to this committee, he said.  The description is a generic 
one in order to facilitate getting on with the search.  A search committee is being assembled and 
nominations are invited.  His inclination is to ask a vice president to chair the committee, he said, because 
the position is at vice presidential level.  It is hoped that the process will be concluded by spring. 
 
 Committee members suggested that the search committee be kept small enough to work 
efficiently.  Nominations should be sent to 213 Morrill Hall. 
 
 The meeting was adjourned at 10:15. 
 
    -- Catherine Winter 
 
University of Minnesota 


